Rutland County Council

Catmose Oakham Rutland LE15 6HP.
Telephone 01572 722577 Facsimile 01572 758307 DX28340
Oakham

Minutes of the **TWO HUNDRED AND SIXTY NINTH (SPECIAL) MEETING of the COUNCIL** held in the Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP on Monday, 5th February, 2018 at 7.00 pm

PRESENT: Mr I Arnold Mr G Brown

Mr N Begy Mr K Bool Mr E Baines Mr O Bird

Miss R Burkitt Mr B Callaghan Mr R Clifton Mr G Conde Mr J Dale Mr R Foster Mrs J Fox Mr R Gale Mr O Hemsley Mr J Lammie Mr A Mann Mr M Oxlev Mrs L Stephenson Miss G Waller Mr A Walters Mr D Wilby

OFFICERS

PRESENT: Mrs H Briggs Chief Executive

Debbie Mogg Director for Resources

(Monitoring Officer)

Dr Tim O'Neill Director for People and Deputy

Chief Executive

Mr M Waik Strategic Communications

Advisor

Mrs Natasha Taylor Governance Manager

562 APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Mr Cross, Mr Parsons and Mr Stewart.

563 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman confirmed that his announcements had been circulated.

The Chairman advised that he had sent a letter of condolence on behalf of the Council to the Leader of South Kesteven District Council following the death of Terl Bryant a long standing member of South Kesteven District Council and Stamford Town Council.

564 ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE LEADER, MEMBERS OF THE CABINET OR THE HEAD OF PAID SERVICE

There were no announcements from the Leader, Members of the Cabinet, or the Head of Paid Service.

565 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were received.

566 PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

There were no petitions, deputations, or questions from members of the public.

567 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

There were no questions from members of the council.

568 ELECTION OF LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

Nominations were invited for the office of the Leader of the Council to remain in office until the next round of ordinary elections.

A nomination was received from Mr Baines who proposed the election of Mr Hemsley as Leader. This was seconded by Mr Foster.

No further nominations were received.

RESOLVED

That Mr Hemsley be elected Leader of the Council.

--000--

In accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rule 11, paragraph 2 – Recording of Votes – Mr Gale requested that his abstention from voting on the above resolution be recorded.

--000-

Mr Hemsley gave a short speech of acceptance as follows:

Colleagues,

It is a huge privilege to take on this job. This is a very proud moment for me and my family.

As someone who has lived and worked in Rutland all my life I know just what a special place this is.

All of us in this room are guardians of that place. That comes with both honour and responsibility.

Let me tell you, if I may, a little bit more about why I am standing here tonight as your new Leader of Rutland County Council.

I became a councillor and now Leader precisely because, just like everyone in this Chamber, I care deeply about the County that we are lucky enough to call home.

For all my life I have been a grafter – from the time my dad forced me to roll my sleeves up at the age of 13 to help out with painting, decorating and gardening, right through to the time when I put my overalls on for good, starting out as a one-man band in the maintenance business 35 years ago.

I will bring that same sense of passion and energy to this job — I will continue to be a grafter who will commit every ounce and energy I have to what is now the most important job of all.

People say to me what are your priorities as Council Leader? It is pretty simple: I want to protect, preserve and enhance what we already have.

One thing that being a small businessman has taught me is that to protect what we have we can never stand still.

Think of back to what life was like in Rutland in the 1970s. In many ways we have what we have now:

- Quality of life that is the envy of most other places
- Great schools that all parents can access
- Good public services
- Flourishing independent businesses
- Low crime
- Low unemployment
- And a great sense of community with people look out for each other.

To protect and preserve Rutland has had to grow by welcoming new people and investing in our infrastructure.

Knowing that we have many challenges and priorities to grapple with. For example:

- How do ensure that our sons and daughters can afford to live in Rutland in the future, enjoying the same opportunities that we had at their age?
- How we ensure that business in our town centres not only survive but thrive in an era where the digital super highway threatens to replace the high street?
- How do we make public services work better for the people in a way that is financially sustainable? and
- How do we ensure that people who are more vulnerable get the right support and care that they need at a time when demand for those services is increasing?

Colleagues, all around this Chamber are people who care passionately about the communities that we serve.

We may, from time to time, have disagreements and different views about what needs to be done, but every single one of us wants to do the right thing for our wards and the County.

We are all ambassadors for Rutland and part of the County's success story.

We are also custodians to its future.

I want us to work as a team with our communities to find the best path forward. To begin to tackle some of those big challenges of our time.

Because the answers, colleagues, do not just lie here in this Chamber, they lie in the villages and towns that make Rutland great.

The Council cannot do it on our own – nor should we. To succeed we have to work as team.

That also means from, the Council's point of view, getting better and listening and learning. It means being more open and transparent about our work and connecting better with the communities that we serve.

For my part, I will be a very approachable council leader. My ears will always be open, as will my door.

In conclusion, colleagues, thank you for bestowing on me this enormous honour.

I particularly want to thank my predecessor, colleague and friend Cllr Tony Mathias who committed so much personal energy to this job, bringing stability and a clear vision for what was needed at a time when it was needed the most.

Tony, you will be a very hard act to follow and is a privilege to follow in your footsteps.

569 NOTIFICATION BY THE LEADER OF THE APPOINTMENT TO THE CABINET

Council noted the Leader's appointment of Cabinet Members and respective Portfolios as follows:

Mr O Hemsley -	Leader and Portfolio Holder for Rutland One Public Estate & Growth, Tourism & Economic Development, Resources (other than Finance and Communications)
Mr N Begy -	Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Planning Policy & Planning Operations, Highways & Transportation and Communications
Mr G Brown -	Portfolio Holder for Regulatory Services, Waste Management, Property Services, Culture & Leisure, Finance including Revenues & Benefits and Internal Audit
Mr A Walters -	Portfolio Holder for Safeguarding – Adults, Public Health, Health Commissioning, Community Safety & Road Safety
Mr R Foster -	Portfolio Holder for Safeguarding – Children & Young People, Armed Forces Champion

APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY LEADER 570

Council noted the Leaders appointment of the Deputy Leader as Mr N Begy.

---oOo---

The Chairman declared the meeting closed at 7.10 pm.

---000----